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Independent auditor’s report

To the Board of Directors of
Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.$:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S. (the
“Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2012 and the statement of
income, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with the financial reporting standards accepted by the Capital
Markets Board. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Independent auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards accepted by the Capital Markets
Board. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance on whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Company management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Opinion

in our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.$. as of December 31, 2012, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting
standards accepted by the Capital Markets Board.

Additional paragraph for convenience translation to English:

As disclosed in Note 2.5 to the accompanying financial statements, as of December 31, 2012, the
accourting principles described in Note 2 (defined as CMB Financial Reporting Standards) to the
accompanying financial statements differ from International Financial Reporting Standards ("[FRS”™)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board with respect to the application of inflation
accountding and the presentation of the basic financial statements and the notes to them. Accordingly,
the accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations in accordance with [FRS.

Giney Badimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Migavirlik Anonim Sirketi
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

LI Y

Ferzan Uigen, SMMM
Partner

February 26, 2013
istanbul, Turkey.
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Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Balance sheet as of December 31, 2012
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

Current Period Pricr Period
Audited Audited
December 31, December 31,
Notes 2012 2011
Assets

Current assets 2,438,262,072 3,089,000,716
Cash and cash equivalents 4 301,518,353 808,849,078

Trade receivables
- Due from related parties 26 752,478,555 877,374,203
- Other trade receivables 7 478,607,642 521,587,032
Other receivables 8 4,552,464 4,346,575
Inventories 9 726,816,032 724,972,219
Other current assets 16 174,289,026 151,871,609
Non-current assets 2,208,855,227 1,332,458,953
Trade receivables 7 537,623 474,645
Financial assets 5 5,961,405 3,458,740
Property, plant and equipment 10 1,739,343,486 1,108,089,000
Intangible assets 11 55,475,988 28,777,170
Deferred tax asset 24 83,167,885 -
Other non-current assets 16 324,368,340 191,659,398

Total assets

4,647 117,299

4,421,459,669

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on February 26, 2013 and
signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by Oduz Toprakodlu, Assistant General Manager — Chief
Financial Officer ("CFO”) and Devrim Kiligodlu, Finance and Accounting Director.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Ford Ofomotiv Sanayi A.S.

Balance sheet as of December 31, 2012
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL"”) unless otherwise indicated.)

Current Period Prior Period
Audited Audited
December 31, December 31,
Notes 2012 2011
Liabilities
Current liabilities 1,652,686,554 1,730,705,260
Financial liabilities 6 363,516,248 226,836,996
Trade payables
- Due to related parties — trade 26 292,778,669 340,785,262
- Other trade payables 7 807,166,340 900,664,471
Other payables
- Due to related parties — non-trade 26 1,449,061 16,468,196
- Qther payables 8 139,020,033 150,137,511
Current income tax payable 24 7,741,631 56,963,729
Provisions 13 41,014,572 38,849,095
Non-current liabilities 998,765,910 792,535,926
Financial liabilities 6 896,037,316 650,052,940
Provision for employee benefits 15 72,876,906 55,081,174
Deferred tax liabilities 24 - 40,304,565
Provisions 13 28,167,783 46,672,397
Derivative financial instruments 28 1,683,905 424,850
Equity 17 1,995,664,835 1,808,218,483
Equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company 17 1,995,664,835 1,898,218,483
Share capital 350,910,000 350,910,000
Inflation adjustment to share capital 27,920,283 27,920,283
Share premium 8,252 8,252
Valuation funds 4,712,623 2,335,091
Net loss on cash flow hedge {1,298,245) (345,806)
Restricted reserves 432,432,060 380,964,519
Retained earnings 505,957,103 464,337,418
Net income for the year 675,022,759 662,088,726
Total equity and liabilities 4,647117,299 4,421,459,669

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2012

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira {“T1.") unless otherwise indicated.)

Current Period Prior Period
Audited Audited
December 31, December 31,
Notes 2012 2011

Continuing operations
Sales 18 9,767,937,257  10,445,022,950
Cost of sales 18  (8,693,361,846) (9,243,511,780)
Gross profit 1,074,575,411 1,201,511,170
Sales and marketing expenses 19 (231,097,209) (255,169,985)
General administrative expenses 19 (120,582,112) (112,904,465)
Research and development expenses 19 (112,084,954) (106,886,110)
Other operating income 21 47,403,306 49,151,689
Other operating expenses 21 {3,673,749) (46,450,461)
Operating profit 654,540,693 729,251,838
Financial income 22 211,652,109 286,253 021
Financial expenses 23 (224,610,244) (215,432,140)
Income before tax from continuing operations 641,582,558 800,072,719
Tax income/{expense) from continuing 33,440,201 (137,983,093)

operations

- Current taxes on income 24 (89,919,272) (168,782,079)
- Deferred tax income 24 123,359,473 30,798,086
Net income for the year 675,022,759 662,088,726
Earnings per share with a nominal value of Kr 1 25 1.92 1.89

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31, 2012
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Current Period Prior Period
Audited Audited
December 31, December 31,
Notes 2012 2011
Net income for the year 675,022,759 662,088,726
Other comprehensive income
Change in revaluation funds of financial assets, net
of deferred tax 17 2,377,532 427,422
Accumulated (loss) / profit from cash flow hedge, net
of deferred tax 17 (952,439) (345,806)
Other comprehensive income (after tax) 1,425,093 81,616
Total comprehensive income 676,447,852 662,170,342

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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{Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Statement of cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2012

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.

)

Current Period
Audited

Priar Period
Audited

Notes December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income before tax 641,582,558 800,072,719
Adjustments to reconcile net income

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 10 123,072,513 125,254,072
Amortization i1 18,005,120 20,625,057
Provision for employee benefits 15 23,521,920 15,483,426
Warranty expense provision 13 55,828,833 70,896,977
interest income 22 (22,980,847) (48,068,840)
Interest expense 23 12,607,844 18,799,809
Foreign exchange (income) / loss incurred from borrowings (10,700,719) 106,350,031
Provisions no longer required {1,140,269) (13,288,028)
(Income) / loss on sale of fixed assets 21 {2,249,473) 482,962
Dividend income 21 (281,198) (87.874)
Unrealized amount of derivative instrumeniks 68,506 {7,407)
Increase in doubiful receivables 7 1,200,000 88,919
Net operating profit before changes in operating assets

and liabilities 838,534,788 1,096,601,823
Decrease / {increase) in accounts receivable 166,675,038 (214,819,706)
(Increase) in inventeries (589,793} (259,521,882)
(Increase) in other current assets (22,623,306) (96,161,014)
(Decrease) / increase in accounts payable (141,504,724} 557,072,813
(Decrease) / increase in other current liabilities (26,206,738} 53,839,636
Income tax paid {139,141,370) (169,057,119)
Warranty expenses paid 13 (72,167,970) (54,088,639)
Employee benefits paid 15 (5,726,188) (4,464,057}
Net cash generated from operating activities 597,249,737 908,591,855
Cash flows used in investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 (757,430,279) {180,269,122)
Purchase of intangible assets 11 {44,703,938) (7,102,685}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 5,352,753 4,843,347
Increase in other non-current assets (132,772,420) {190,119,804)
Interest received 22,937,222 46,567,423
Dividends received 21 281,198 87,874
Net cash used in investing activities (906,335,464) (325,892,947)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Interest paid (12,667,340) {16,691,431)
Dividends paid 17 (579,001,500) (518,995,890)
Proceeds from borrowings 696,796,581 515,501,212
Payments of borrowings (303,372,739) (275,507,755)
Net cash used in financing activities (198,244,998) (295,693,864)
Net {decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents {507,330,725) 287,905,044
Beginning balance of cash and cash equivalents 4 808,849,078 520,944,034
Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents 4 301,518,353 808,849,078

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of these financial statements

(8)



{Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish}

Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

1. Organization and nature of the operations

Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S. (the "Company”) is incorporated and domiciled in Turkey and manufactures,
assembles and sells motor vehicles, primarily commercial vehicles, imports and sells passenger cars
and manufactures and imports and sells spare parts of those vehicles. The Company was established in
1959 and presently operates as a joint venture between Ford Motor Company and the Kog Group of
Companies. The Company is listed on the Istanbul Stock Exchange, where 17.92% of its shares are
currently quoted.

The Company presently has two plants located in Kocaeli and Eskigehir, has a spare part distribution
warehouse in Kartal, Istanbul and a branch in Tdbitak Marmara Research Centre, Gebze Campus
Technological Free Zone ("TEKSEB”) established in 2007 for the purpose of conducting research and
development and engineering operaticns. The light commercial vehicle, "Transit Connect’, Transit
vehicles (minibuses, pick-ups and vans) and Transit Custom which was started production in 2012 are
manufactured in Kocaeli. Ford Cargo frucks and their engines are manufactured in Eskisehir.

In 2012, the Company had a total of 9,693 employees on average, composed of 2,378 white-collar and
7,314 blue-collar workers. The Company had a total of 9,527 employees composed of 2,458 white-collar
and 7,069 blue-collar workers as of December 31, 2012. (December 31, 2011: The Company had a total
of 9,455 employees on average, composed of 2,016 white-collar and 7,439 blue-collar workers, The
Company had a total of 9,581 employees composed of 2,167 white-collar and 7,414 blue-collar workers
as of year end).

The registered office address of the Company is Akpinar Mahallesi, Hasan Basri Cad. No: 2
Sancakiepe, Istanbul,

2. Basis of presentation of financial statements
2.1 Basis of presentation
Financial reporting standards

The Capital Markets Board (*CMB”) regulated the principles and procedures of preparation, presentation
and announcement of financial statements prepared by the entities, with the Communiqué No: XI-29,
“Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets” (the Communiqué”).The Communiqué is effective
for the annual periods starting from January 1, 2008 and supersedes the Communiqué No: XI-25, “The
Accounting Standards in the Capital Markets”. According to Article 5 of the Financial Reporting
Standards by the Capital Markets Board (CMB), entities shall prepare their financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("|AS/IFRS") endorsed by the European
Union. According fo the provisional Aricle 2, the implementation of Aricle 5 is postponed until the
differences between the IFRS adopted by the European Union and the IFRS put forth by the
International Accounting Standards Commiitiee (IASC) have been announced by the Turkish Accounting
Standards Commitiee {TASC} (TASC was closed in November 2011 and its duties were transferred to
the Accounting and Auditing Standards Committee). Therefore, the Company has prepared its financial
statement for the year ended December 31, 2012 in accordance with the Turkish Financial Reporting
Standards, which are in accordance with the IFRS adopted by IASC.

With the decision taken on March 17, 2005, the CMB announced that, effective from January 1, 2005,
the application of inflation accounting is no longer required for companies operating in Turkey and
preparing their financial statements in accordance with the financial reporting standards issued by the
CMB (“CMB Financial Reporting Standards”). Accordingly, IAS 29, “Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies”, issued by the IASB, has not been applied in the financial statements
commencing from January 1, 2005.
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Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Notes {o the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“T1.") unless otherwise indicated.)

2, Financial reporting standards (continued)

As the differences between IAS/IFRS endorsed by the Eurcpean Union and IAS/IFRS issued by the
IASBE have not been announced by TASB vyet, these financial statements have been prepared within the
framework of financial statement communiqué and announcements related with this communiqué in
accordance with the CMB Financial Reporting Standards which are based on IAS/IFRS. Financial
statements and the related notes to them are presented in accordance with the formats recommended
by the CMB, with the announcement dated April 17, 2008 and January 9, 2009, including the compulsory
disclosures.

Except for the financial assets carried at fair value and derivative instruments, financial statements are
prepared on a cost basis.

The Company financial statements as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, have been
prepared within the framework of Communigué XI, No: 28 and related promulgations to this
Communiqué as accepted by the CMB, in accordance with the CMB's “Financial Reporting Standards”
announced on April 8, 2008, which are based on IAS/IFRS.

Company's functional and presentation currency is accepted as TL.

Going concern

The financial statements of the Company are prepared on the basis of a going concern assumption,
Comparatives of prior periods’ financial statements

The financial statements of the Company include comparative financial information to enable the
determination of the financial position and performance. The balance sheet of the Company at
December 31, 2012 has been provided with the comparative financial information of December 31,
2011 and the statement of income, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash
flows and the statement of changes in equity for the period between January 1, 2012 and December
31, 2012 have been provided with the comparative financial information, for the period between
January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011.

2.2 Amendments and interpretations in the standards
a) New and amended standards and interpretations:

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements as at December 31, 2012
are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new and amended
IFRS and IFRIC interpretations effective as of January 1, 2012. The effects of these standards and
interpretations on the Company's financial position and performance have been disclosed in the
related paragraphs.

The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at January 1, 2012
are as follows:

s [|AS 12 Income Taxes: Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendment)

IAS 12 has been updated to include i) a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment
property measured using the fair value model in IAS 40 should be determined on the basis that its
carrying amount will be recovered through sale and ii) a requirement that deferred tax on non-
depreciable assets, measured using the revaluation model in IAS 16, should always be measured on
a sale basis. These amendments will be applied retrospectively. Adoption of this amendment did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

(10)
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Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"} unless otherwise indicated.)

2. Financial reporting standards (continued)

» IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets (Amended)

The purpose of this amendment is to allow users of financial statemenis to improve their
understanding of transfer transactions of financial assets (e.g. securitizations), including understanding
the possible effects of any risks that may remain with the entity which transferred the assets. The
amendment also requires additional disclosures if a disproportionate amount of transfer transactions
are undertaken around the end of a reporting pericd. Comparative disclosures are not required. The
amendment affects disclosures only and did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Company.

b) Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not vet effective
up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are as follows. The Company will make the
necessary changes if not indicated otherwise, which will be affecting the financial statements and
disclosures, after the new standards and interpretations become in effect.

e [AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amended) — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments are effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 July 2012, buf earlier
application is permitted. The amendments to IAS 1 change only the grouping of items presented in
other comprehensive income. items that could be reclassified (or recycled’) to profit or loss at a future
point in time would he presented separately from items which will never be reclassified. The
amendments will be applied retrospectively. The amendment affects presentation only and will have
no impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

o 1AS 19 Employee Benefits (Amended)

Amended standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with earlier
application permitted. With very few exceptions retrospective application is required. Numerous
changes or clarifications are made under the amended standard. Among these numerous
amendments, the most important changes are removing the corridor mechanism and making the
distinction between short-term and other long-term employee benefiis based on expected timing of
settlement rather than employee entilemenf. The effect of the amended standard will be the
recognition of TL 12,584,337 after tax in the income statement for the year ended December 31, 2012,

s |AS 27 Separate Financial Statements {(Amended)

As a consequential amendment to IFRS 10 and IFRS 12, the IASB also amended IAS 27, which is
now limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate
financial statements. Transitional reguirement of this amendment is similar o IFRS 10. This
amendment will not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.
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Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

2. Financial reporting standards (continued)
e [AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amended)

As a consequential amendment fo IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, the IASB also amended 1AS 28, which has
been renamed IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, to describe the application of the
equity method fo investments in joint ventures in addition to associates. Transitional requirement of
this amendment is similar to IFRS 11. These amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The Company does not expect that this amendment
will have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

 IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amended)

The amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and also
clarify the application of the IAS 32 offsetting criteria to seftlement systems (such as central clearing
house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. These
amendments are io be refrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2014. The Company does not expect that these amendments will have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

¢« IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amended)

New disclosures would provide users of financial statements with information that is useful in (a)
evaluating the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position and (b)
analysing and comparing financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs and other generally
accepted accounting standards. The amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013 and interim periods within those annual periods. The
amendment affects disclosures only and will have no impact on the financial position or performance
of the Company.

o [FRS 9 Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement

As amended in December 2011, the new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2015. Phase 1 of this new IFRS infroduces new requirements for classifying and measuring
financial insfruments. The amendments made to IFRS @ will mainly affect the classification and
measurement of financial assets and measurement of fair value option (FVO) liabitities and requires
that the change in fair value of a FVO financial liability attributable to credit risk is presented under
other comprehensive income. Early adoption is permitted. This standard has not yet been endorsed by
the EU. The Company dees not expect that these amendments will have any impact on the financiai
position or performance of the Company.

e IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statementis

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 and is applied on a
modified retrospective basis. This new Standard may be adopted early, but IFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities should be also adopted early.

iFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consclidated financial statements. A new definition of control is
introduced, which is used to determine which entities are consolidated. This is a principle based
standard and require preparers of financial statements to exercise significant judgment. The Company
does not expect that these amendments will have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Company.

(12)
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Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL"} unless otherwise indicated.)

2. Financial reporting standards (continued)
o IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 and is applied on a
madified retrospective basis. This new Standard may be adopted early, but IFRS 10 Consclidated
Financial Statements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities should be also adopted
early.

The standard describes the accounting for joint ventures and joint operations with joint control. Among
other changes introduced, under the new standard, proportionate consolidation is not permitted for
joint ventures. The Company does not expect that these amendments will have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Company.

s IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 and is applied on a
modified retrospective basis. This new Standard may be adopted early, but [FRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements should be also adopted early.

IFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in 1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that
were previously included in 1AS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and 1AS 28 Investment in Associates.
These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities. The Company does not expect that these amendments will have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Company.

¢ |FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The new Standard provides guidance on how to measure fair value under IFRS but does not change
when an entity is required to use fair value. It is a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair
value measurements. The new standard also brings new disclosure requirements for fair value
measuremenis. IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 and will
be adopted prospectively. Early application is permitted. The new disclosures are only required for
periods beginning after IFRS 13 is adopted. Comparative disclosures for prior periods are not
required. The Company does not expect that these amendments will have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

e IFRIC Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 with earlier
application permitted. Entities will be required to apply its requirements for production phase stripping
costs incurred from the start of the earliest comparative period presented. The Interpretation clarifies
when production stripping should lead to the recognition of an asset and how that asset should be
measured, both initially and in subsequent periods. The interpretation is not applicable for the
Company and will not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

(13)
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Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira {“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

2. Financial reporting standards {(continued)
Transition Guidance (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12)

The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The amendments
change the transition guidance to provide further relief from full retrospective application. The date of
initial application is defined as ‘the beginning of the annual reporting period in which IFRS 10 is
applied for the first time’. The assessment of whether control exists is made at ‘the date of initial
application’ rather than at the beginning of the comparative period. If the control assessment is
different between IFRS 10 and IAS 27/SIC-12, retrospective adjustments should be determined.
However, if the confrol assessment is the same, no retrospective application is required. If more than
one comparative period is presented, additional relief is given to require only one period to be
restated. For the same reasons IASB has also amended IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities to provide fransition relief. This guidance has not yet been
endorsed by the EU. The Company does not expect that these amendments will have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Company.

¢) Improvements to IFRSs

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs — 2009 — 2011 Cycle, which contains
amendments to its standards. The annual improvements project provides a mechanism for making
necessary, but non-urgent, amendments o IFRS. The effective date for the amendments is for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, Earlier application is permitted in all cases, provided
that fact is disclosed. This project has nof yet been endorsed by the EU. The Company is in the
process of assessing the impact of the new standard on the financial position or performance of the
Company.

IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and the minimum
required comparative information.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Clarifies that major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment are not inventory.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

Clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are accounted for in accordance
with IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment removes existing income tax requirements from IAS 32
and requires entities to apply the requirements in IAS 12 to any income tax arising from distributions to
equity holders.

IAS 34 interim Financial Reporting:

Clarifies the requirements in IAS 34 relating to segment information for total assets and liabilities for
each reportable segment. Total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable segment need to be
disclosed only when the amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker and
there has been a material change in the total amount disclosed in the entity's previous annual financial
statements for that reportable segment.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (Amendment)

IFRS 10 is amended to provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to
account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial
instruments. The amendment applies for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 with
earlier application permitted. The amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Company
does not expect that these amendments will have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Company.

(14)
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Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unfess otherwise indicated.)

2. Financial reporting standards (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits at banks and highly liquid short-term investments, with maturity
periods of less than three months, which has insignificant risk of change in fair value (Note 4).

Trade receivables and allowance for trade receivables

Trade receivables as a result of providing goods or services by the Company directly to a debtor are
carried at amortized cost. Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the
original invoice amount unless the effect of imputing interest is significant.

Provision for doubtful receivables is an estimated amount that management believes to reflect for
possible future losses on existing receivables that have collection risk due to current economic
conditions. During the impairment test for receivables, debtors, other than the key accounts and
related parties, are assessed with their prior year performances, their credit risk in the current market,
their performance after the balance sheet date up to the issuing date of the financial statements and
furthermore, the renegotiation conditions with these debtors are considered.

A credit risk provision for trade receivables is established if there is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of all cash flows,
including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted based on the original
effective interest rate of the originated receivables at inception.

If the impairment amount decreases due fo an event occurring after the write-down, the release of the
provision is credited to other income in the current period.

The Company collects most of the receivables from domestic vehicles and spare parts sales through
the “Direct Debit System” (DDS). Within this system which is also named as Direct Collection System;
the contracted banks warrant the collection of the receivables within the limits granted to the dealers.
Trade receivables are transferred by the contracted banks to the Company’s bank accounts at the due
dates (Note 7 and 26).

Credit finance income/charges

Credit finance income/charges represent imputed finance income/charges on credit sales and
purchases. Such income/charges are recognized as financial income or expense over the period of
credit sales and purchases, and are included under financial income and expenses.

inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of inventories is determined
on the moving monthly average basis. Cost elements included in inventories are materials, labour and
an appropriate amount of factory overheads and exclude the cost of borrowing. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling
expenses. The allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion is based on the
normal capacity of the production facilities. Idle time expenses arising from the ceases in production
other than planned in the factory's annual production plan are not associated with inventories and are
recognized as cost of sales (Note 9).
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)
Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized at initial cost and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
effective interest rate method (Notes 7 and 26).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
provided using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The depreciation periods for property and equipment, which approximate the economic useful lives of
assets concerned, are as follows:

Land improvements 14.5 - 30 years
Buildings 14.5 - 36 years
Machinery and equipment 5-25 years
Moulds and models Project lifetime
Furniture and fixtures 4 -14.5 years
Motor vehicles 9-15 years

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life,

Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amounts and are included in other operating income and losses. Repair and
maintenance expenses are charged to the statement of income as they are incurred. Repair and
maintenance expenditures are capitalized if they result in an enlargement or substantial improvement
of the respective asset (Note 10).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software, rights, leasehold improvements and development
costs.

intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated using
the straight-line method over a period depending on the project's lifetime. Development costs,
comprising of engineering design incurred for the preduction of new commercial vehicles, are
capitalized as discussed in Note 2.3 Research and development expenses (Note 11).

The estimated useful lifetimes of such assets are as follows:
Righis 3-5 years

Capitalized improvement expenses Project lifetime
Other intangible assets 5 years

(16)
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2, Basis of presentation of financial statements {continued)
Impairment of long-lived assets

All assets are reviewed for impairment losses including property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets whenever evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset's net selling price and value in
use. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of income.

impairment losses on assets can be reversed, to the extent of previously recorded impairment losses,
in cases where increases in the recoverable value of the asset can be associated with events that
oceur subsequent to the period when the impairment loss was recorded.

Financial investments

Investments intended fo be held for an indefinite period of time, and which may be sold in response to
a need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as available-for-sale. These are included
in non-current assets unless management has the express intention of holding the investments for
less than 12 months from the balance sheet date or unless they will need to be sold to raise operating
capital, in which case they are included in current assets. Management makes the proper classification
of such financial instruments at the date they are purchased and monitors this classification regularly.

All financial assets are initially carried at cost including purchasing costs related with investments. The
unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale securities are
recognized in other comprehensive income (Note 5).

Share premium

Share premium represents differences resulting from the sale of the Company's subsidiaries and
associates’ shares at a price exceeding the face values of those shares or differences between the
face values and the fair value of shares issued for acquired companies.

Share capital and dividends

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in equity in the
period in which they are declared. Dividends payable are recognized as an appropriation of profit in
the period in which they are declared (Notes 17 and 21).

Taxes on income

Taxes include current period income taxes and deferred taxes.

Current period income tax

Current year tax liability consists of tax liability on the taxable income calculated according to currently
enacted tax rates and to the effective tax legislation as of balance sheet date.
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, for temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. Tax
bases of assets and liabilities comprise of the amounts that will affect the future period tax charges
based on the tax legisiation. Currently enacted tax rates, which are expected to be effective during the
periods when the deferred tax assets will be ufilized or deferred tax liabilities will be settled, are used
to determine deferred income tax.

Deferred tax liability is calculated on all taxable temporary differences whereas deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporarily differences can be utilized. Carrying values
of deferred tax assets are decreased to the extent necessary, if future taxable profits are not expected
to be available to utilize deferred tax assets partially or fully.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities (Note 24).

Current and deferred tax

Current and deferred taxes except those which are either related to the items directly recognized in the
equity as receivable or payable (which, in such cases, the deferred tax regarding the related items are
also recognized directly in the equity) or those which result from the initial recognition of an enterprise
merger are recognized as income or loss in the income statement.

Revenue recognition
Goods & services sales

Revenue comprises the invoiced value for the sale of goods and services. Revenue from the sale of
goods is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to
the buyer. For export sales significant risk and rewards are transferred to the buyer on FAS, “Final
Assignment to Ship” terms. For domestic vehicle and spare parts sales, significant risk and rewards
are transferred to the buyer when goods are delivered and received by the buyer or when the legal
title is passed to the buyer. For export service sales, significant risk and rewards are transferred to the
buyer when services are given and revenue is determined reasonably. Net sales represent the
invoiced value of goods shipped less sales returns. When the arrangement effectively constitutes a
financing transaction, the fair value of the consideration is determined by discounting all future receipts
using an imputed rate of interest. The difference between the fair value and the nominal amount of the
consideration is recognized as interest income on an accrual basis (Note 18).

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from the stock investments are recorded when the stockholders become entitled to
receive a dividend.

Interest income is realized on a time period basis and the accrued income is determined by taking into
account the valid interest rate and the interest rate that is to be effective until its maturity date.
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2, Basis of presentation of financial statements {continued)
Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year have been translated at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies have been translated into TL at the Central Bank of Turkey (TCB)} exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet dates. Foreign currency exchange gains or losses arising from the
settlement of such transactions and from the franslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognized in the statement of income (Notes 22, 23 and 27).

Foreign currency exchange rates used by the Company at the time of balance sheet dates are as
follows:

TL/USD TL/Euro TL/IGBP
December 31, 2012 1.7826 2.3517 2,8708
December 31, 2011 1.8889 2.4438 2,9170

Financial instruments and financial risk management
Credit risk

Ownership of financial assets involves the risk that counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of
their agreements. All trade receivables are due mainly from dealers and related parties. The Company
has established effective control procedures over its dealers and the credit risk arising from
transactions with such dealers is regularly monitored by management and the aggregate risk to any
individual counterparty is limited. The Company covered its credit risk from domestic vehicle sales to
dealers by setting credit limits for dealers through arranged banks and collects its trade receivables
from banks af the due date through the use of Direct Debit System. The use of DDS for receivables
from dealers is an effective way to decrease the credit risk.

Collaterals obtained from dealers for the receivables regarding domestic spare part sales is another
method in the management of the credit risk (Note 7).

Export sales mainly consist of sales to Ford Motor Company and its subsidiaries. Collection terms and
conditions are specified in the business agreements with Ford Motor Company. Receivables from Ford
Motor Company and its subsidiaries, except vehicle sales, are collected in 30 days in average (for
export vehicle sales 14 days). The collection of receivables resulting from export sales to customers
other than Ford Motor Company is secured with letter of credit, letter of guarantee or cash payment.

Price risk

The Company is exposed fo equity securities price risk because of investments classified on the balance
sheet as available-for-sale. The Company limits the available-for-sale financial assets in order to manage
the price risk arising from investments in equity securities.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the

availability of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out
market positions.
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (confinued)

The risk of funding current and future debt requirements is managed by having an adequate number of
quality loan providers constantly available. The Company management keeps cash, credit commitment
and factoring capacity to maintain 30 days cash outflows to manage the liquidity risk. The Company
maintains a credit commitment amounting to Euro 70 million and factoring agreement amounting to TL
140 million in case a requirement for use arises.

Interest rate risk

Management uses short-term interest bearing financial assets to manage the maturities of interest
bearing assets and liabilities. The Company makes limited use of interest rate swaps, to hedge its
floating rate borrowings, if needed.

Funding risk

The ability to fund the existing and prospective debt requirements is managed as necessary by obtaining
adequate committed funding lines from high quality lenders.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through the impact of rate changes on the translation
of foreign currency assets and liabilities into local currency. This risk is monitored by management
through Audit Committee and regular Board of Director's meetings.

Excess cash is invested mainly in hard currency to balance the net foreign currency assets and liabilities
and in order to minimize the balance sheet foreign exchange exposure. In addition to this, distribution of
the amount of the export orientated production and sales in the related months can increase the foreign
assets (Note 27).

Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to total capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as
total debt divided by total capital. Debt is calculated as total short and long term borrowings, whereas
total equity is calculated as equity, as shown in the balance sheet. According to the decision of
Company Board of Directors, debt to total capital ratio is expected to be between 0.25-0.70.

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

Financial debt 1,259,553,564 876,889,936
Total equity 1,995,664,835 1,898,218,483
Debt/Total equity ratio 0.63 0.46

(20)
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liguidation, and is best evidenced by a quoted
market price, if one exists.

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Company using
available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgment is
necessarily required to interpret market data to estimate the fair value,

Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the
Company could realize in a current market exchange. The following methods and assumptions were
used fo estimate the fair value of the financial instruments for which it is practical to estimate fair value:

Financial assets

The fair values of balances denominated in foreign currencies, which are translated using year-end
exchange rates, are considered to approximate their carrying value. The fair values of certain financial
assets carried at cost, including cash and amounts due from banks and deposits with banks are
considered to approximate their respective carrying values due to their short-term nature. The carrying
values of trade receivables along with the related allowances for impairment are estimated to be their
fair values due to their short-term nature.

Financial liabilities

Bank borrowings are recorded over their fair value of which the transaction costs are discounted. in
the following periods, they are evaluated and recognized with their discounted costs by using the
effective rate of interest method. The fair values of other monetary liabilities are considered to
approximate their respective carrying values due {o their short-term nature.

Derivative financial instruments and cash flow hedge accounting

The Company has entered into swap transactions in order to manage iis interest rate risk Swap
transactions are initially recognized at fair value on the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Swap fransactions that are designated as hedging instruments
for cash flow hedges are accounted for in accordance with hedge accounting policies under
International Financial Reporting Standards. Changes in the fair value of the derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges and that are highly effective, are recognized in equity as
hedge reserves. Hedge accounting is terminated when the hedge instrument has expired, is sold, is
used or when it becomes incapable of fulfilling the conditions for hedge accounting.

The fair value of interest swap contracts is determined by using valuation methods based on
observahle data in the market.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments except in case there is compulsory sales or at liquidation stage
that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business on the halance sheet date. For financial instruments where there is no
active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such technigues may include using
recent arm’s length market fransactions (if any); reference to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

(21)



(Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Notes fo the financial statements for the ysar ended December 31, 2012
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"}) unless otherwise indicated.)

2, Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)
Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognized initially at the proceeds received, net of fransaction costs incurred. In
subsequent periods, borrowings are stated at amortized cost using the effective yield method; any
difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the
statement of income over the period of the borrowings (Note 6). With respect to assets which take long
time to get ready for use and sale, borrowing costs related to production or construction are integrated
to the cost of the asset. The borrowing costs include other costs incurred due to borrowing and
interest.

Provision for employee benefits

a) Defined benefit plan:

Provision for employee benefits represent the present value of the estimated total reserve of the future
probable obligation of the Company arising from the retirement of the employees or reasons except for
resignation and behaviors stated in labor law, calculated in accordance with the Turkish Labour Law
(Note 15). Actuarial gains and losses, on the other hand, are recognized in the statement of income.

b) Defined confribution plan:

The Company has to compensate the Sccial Security Contribution of the employees. As long as this is
compensated, there is no any other obligation for the Company. Social Security Contributions are
classified as personnel expenses as of the accrual date (Note 15).

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resuli
of past events, it is probable that an oufflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. If the provision amount decreases, in the case of an
event occurring after the provision is accounted for, the related amount is classified as other income in
the current period.

Variable marketing provision

Provision for dealer stock variable marketing expenses is accounted based on the last approved
variable marketing programme (Note 8).

Warranty expenses provision
Warranty expenses are recognized on an accrual basis for amounts estimated based on prior periods’

realization. The Company has reclassified warranty reserves to be expected fo be realized in one year
as current provision (Note 13).

(22)
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2, Basis of presentation of financial statementis (continued}
Research and development expenses

Research expenditure is recognized as an expense as incurred. Costs, except for listed below are
classified as development expenditures and recognized as expense as incurred.

- If the cost related to the products can be defined and only if the cost can be measured reliably.

- If the technological feasibility can be measured.

- If the good will be sold or will be used within the Company.

- If there's a potential market or can be proved that it is used within the Company.

- If necessary technological, financial and other resources can be provided to complete the
project.

Development costs previously recognized as expense are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent
period. Development costs that have been capitalized are amortized from the commencement of the
commercial production of the product on a straight-line basis over five years (Note 11).

Lease
L easing - the Company as lessor
Operational Leasing

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a siraight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Related parties
Parties are considered retated to the company (reporting eniity) if;

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:
{i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
{ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity.

{b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i} Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v} The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. [f the reporting entity is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

{vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

{vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

(23)
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2, Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

The Company defines its key management personnel as board of directors’ members, general
managers, assistant general managers and directors reporting directly to the general manager {Note
26).

Earnings per share

Earnings per share disclosed in the statement of income are determined by dividing net earnings by
the weighted average number of shares that have been outstanding during the related year
concerned.

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares
("bonus shares") to existing shareholders from retained earnings and the revaluation surplus. For the
purpose of earnings per share computations, the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year has been adjusted in respect of bonus shares issues without a corresponding change
in resources, by giving them retroactive effect for the year in which they were issued and for each
earlier year (Note 25).

Comparatives

Comparative figures that are material have been reclassified to conform fo the changes to be
consistent in presentation in the current period.

Reporting of cash flows

In the statement of cash flows, cash flows during the period are classified under operating, investing or
financing activities.

The cash flows raised from operating activities indicate cash flows due to the Company’s operations.

The cash flows due fo investing aclivities indicate the Company cash flows that are used for and
obtained from investments (investments in property, plant and equipment and financial investments).

The cash flows due to financing activities indicate the cash obtained from financial arrangements and
used in their repayment. Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank deposits and the
investments that are readily convertible into cash and highly liquid assets with less than three months
to maturity (Note 4).

Contingent assets and liabilities

Possible assets or obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncerfain future events not whally within the
control of the Company are not included in the financial statements and treated as contingent assets
or liabilities {Note 13).

Subsequent events

Subsequent events and announcements related to net profit or even declared after other selective
financial information has been publicly anncunced; include all events that take place between the
balance sheet date and the date when the balance sheet is authorized for issue. In the case that
events requiring an adjustment to the financial statements occur subsequent to the balance sheet
date, the Company makes the necessary corrections on the financial statements {(Note 29).
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements {continued)
Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legal basis, intention to disclose net amount
of related assets and liabilities or the abtaining of an asset follows the settling of its liability.

Government grants and incentives

Government grants and incentives are recognized at fair value when there is assurance that these
grants and incentives will be received and the Company has met all conditions required. Government
grants and incentives regarding the capitalized projects, costs are recognized by netting from costs of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Incentives which are not subject to assets are
shown as other income in the income statement.

2.4 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

Material changes in accounting policies or material errors are corrected, retrospectively; by restating
the prior period financial statements. The effect of changes in accounting estimates affecting the
current period is recognized in the current period; the effect of changes in accounting estimates
affecting current and future periods is recognized in the current and future periods. As of December
31, 2012 there is no significant change in accounting estimates and error.

2.5 Convenience translation into English of financial statements originally issued in Turkish

The accompanying financial statements, accounting principles and standards applied in the
accompanying financial statements (CMB financial accounting standards) are based on International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standards Board except for
the adoption of an earlier date for discontinuation of application of 1AS 29 (Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies). As per CMB financial accounting standards application of inflation
accounting was ceased effective as of January 1, 2005, whereas per IFRS it was ceased effective
January 1, 20086,

2.6 Significant accounting estimates and decisions

The preparation of financial statements require management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

a) In calculation of the employee benefit provision actuarial assumptions relating to turnover ratio,
discount rate and salary increase are used. The details regarding the calculation are disclosed in
provision for employee benefits {(Note 15).

b} In determination of the impairment of trade receivables, the factors such as debtor credibility,
historical payment performance and debt restructuring is considered (Note 7).

c) Discounted inventory price list is used fo calculate inventory impairment. Where the sales price
cannct be predicted, technical personnel’s opinion and inventory waiting time is considered. If
expected net realizable value is less than cost, the Company should allocate provisions for
inventory impairment (Note 9).

d)} In determination of the legal case provisions, the possibilities of losing the case and the liabilities
that will arise if the case is lost is evaluated by the Company’s Legal Counselor and by the
Management team faking into account expert opinions. The management determines the amount
of the provisions based on the best forecasts.
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{Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira {“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

e} In calculation of the warranty provision, the Company considers the historical warranty expenses
incurred to estimate the possible warranty expense per vehicle. Provision calculations are
realistically performed and based on vehicle quantity, warranty period and historical claims (Note
13).

f) Deferred tax assets are recorded when the occurrence of taxable income is probable in the
forthcoming years. Deferred tax asset is calculated over any temporary differences in cases when
the occurrence of taxable income is probable. Deferred tax asset is recorded for the year ended
December 31, 2012 since presumptions that the Company will have taxable income in the
forthcoming periods are found to be sufficient {(Note 24).

g) The Company recognizes depreciation and amortization for its property, plant and eguipments
and intangibles by taking into account their useful lives that are stated in Note 2.3 (Note 10 and
11).

3. Segment reporting

The Company, which is incorporated and domiciled in Turkey, has primary operation of manufacturing,
assembling, importing and selling motor vehicles and spare parts. The Company's operating
segments, nature and economic characteristics of products, nature of production processes,
classification of customers in terms of risk for their products and services and methods used to
distribute their preducts are similar. Furthermore, the Company structure has been organized to
operate in one segment rather than separate business segments. Consequently, the business
activities of the Company are considered to be in one operating segment and the operating results,
resources to be allocated o the segment and assessment of performance are managed in this
respect.

4. Cash and cash equivalents

Pecember 31, December 31,

2012 2011

Banks- foreign currency time deposits 268,395,160 409,090,947
Banks - TL demand deposits 26,610,646 68,352,298
Banks - TL time deposits 5,601,120 330,480,311
Banks - foreign currency demand deposits 911,367 915,524
301,518,353 808,849,078

The maturity period of time deposits is up to three months and there is no blockage/restriction on cash
and cash equivalents. The weighted average inferest rate for USD denominated time deposits is
2.90% (December 31, 2011: 5.50%). The weighted average interest rate for Euro denominated time
deposits is 2.41% (December 31, 2011: 5.17%). The weighted average interest rate for the TL time
deposits is 7.69% (December 31, 2011: 11.64%).



{Convenience franslation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

5. Financial assets

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Shareholding Shareholding
Available-for-sale financial assets: % Amount % Amount
Otokar Otomotiv ve Savunma Sanayi A.S.
(Otokar) (*) 0.59 5,961,405 0.58 3,458,740

5,961,405

3,458,740

™ The Company's shareholding in Otokar was stated at market value per the stock quotes at the
Istanbul Stock Exchange at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 which is assumed fo

approximate its fair value.

6. Financial liabilities

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Effective TL Effective TL
interest rate % Amount  interest rate % amount
Short term borrowings:
- Euro 1.00 88,024,131 2.29 67,400,004
-TL(M - 8,302,535 - 101,297
96,326,666 67,501,301
) Interest-free loans used for short term purposes.

Short-term portion of long-term borrowings:

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Effective TL Effective TL

interest rate % amount interest rate % amount

~ Euro 2.45 238,302,673 3.37 158,983,070

-UsD 2.97 28,886,909 2.68 352,625

267,189,582 159,335,695

Total short term borrowings 363,516,248 226,836,996
Long term borrowings:

- Euro 2.31 896,037,316 3.53 619,830,540

- Usb - - 2.68 30,222,400

896,037,316 650,052,940




(Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)
Ford Ofomotiv Sanayi A.S.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”} unless otherwise indicated.)

6. Financial liabilities (continued)

The payment schedules of long-term bank borrowings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Payment period Total Tl Total TL
2013 - 252,639,137

2014 211,392,012 230,192,464

2015 284,988,369 131,329,646

2016 98,460,416 16,121,932

2017 83,490,904 5,648,502

2018 78,686,683 14,121,259

2018-2021 139,018,932 -
896,037,316 650,052,940

The letters of bank guarantee given to financial institutions in connection with borrowings amount to TL

685,574,000 (December 31, 2011 - TL 194,893,049) (Note 13).

7. Trade receivables and payables

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Short term trade receivables:

Trade receivables 481,044,572 517,917,390
Cheques and notes receivable - 7,392 169
Doubtful receivables 4,533,456 3,333,456
Less: Unearned credit finance income (2,436,930) (3,722,527)

483,141,098 524,920,488
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (4,533,456) (3,333,456)

478,607,642 521,587,032

The average turnover of frade receivables is 30 days {December 31, 2011: 30 days) and discounted

by 0.64% manthly effective interest rate (December 31, 2011: 1.05%).



(Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

7. Trade receivables and payables {continued)

The collection of receivables from export sales other than Ford Motor Company is kept under guarantee
with letter of credit, letter of guarantee or upfront cash collection.

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

l.ong term trade receivables:

Deposits and guarantees given

537,623

474,645

537,623

474,645

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Trade payables:

Trade payables 810,038,054 906,030,573
Less: Unearned credit finance expense (2,871,714) (5,366,102)
807,166,340 900,664,471

The average turnover of tfrade payables is 60 days (December 31, 2011: 60 days) and discounted by
0.64% monthly effective interest rate (December 31, 2011: 1.05%).
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{Convenience translation of financial statements originalily issued in Turkish)
Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

7. Trade receivables and payables {continued)

The aging schedule of receivables that are overdue but not impaired is as follows:

Trade receivables

December 31, 2012 Related party Other
1-30 days overdue 17,523,033 1,934,800
1-3 months overdue 3,776,451 339,845
3-12 months overdue 7,406,479 312,248
1-5 years overdue 4,497,722 1,443,680

33,203,685 4,030,573
Risk covered by guarantees - 1,864,174

The Company’s overdue related party receivable
and spare parts exports to Ford Motor Company.

s are related to the long term engineering service bills

Trade receivables

December 31, 2011 Related party Other
1-30 days overdue 4,130,763 1,339,011
1-3 months overdue 9,219,076 1,375,466
3-12 months overdue 14,867,704 4,419,742
1-5 years overdue 5,356,204 62,031
33,573,747 7,196,250

Risk covered by guarantees - 632,956

Movements in the provision for impairment on trade receivables are as follows:

2012 2011

At January 1, 3,333,456 3,244 537
Provisions during the year 1,200,000 88,919
At December 31, 4,533,456 3,333,456

8. Other receivables and payables

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Other receivables:

Other miscellaneous receivables

4,552,464 4,346,575

4,552,464 4,346,575

(32)



(Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

8. Cther receivables and payables (continued)

December 31, 2612 December 31, 2011

Other payables:

Taxes and funds payable 40.379.148 52.502.458
Payables to personnel and expense accruals 34.379.893 46.680.062
Variable marketing provision (*) 31.329.263 23.118.895
Expense accruals 15.223.130 10.030.288
Payables to engineering companies 12.800.732 10.237.728
Other 4.907.867 7.568.080

139.020.033 150.137.511

(*y  Variable marketing provision is primarily composed of discount accruals as of balance sheet
date that dealers earned but not invoiced and expense accruals related with dealer vehicle
stock at balance sheet date (Note 2.3).

9, Inventories

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Raw materials 280,078,252 298,160,635
Finished goods 219,100,521 75,705,380
Goods in transit 118,581,186 215,633,497
Spare parts 70,595,889 70,536,820
Import vehicles 40,831,183 68,560,906
729,187,031 728,597,238

Less: Provision for impairment of finished goods and
spare parts {2,370,999) (3,625,019)
726,816,032 724,972,219

The allocation of fixed production overheads to finished goods costs of conversion is based on the
normal capacity of the production faciiities.

The Company has accounted for the impairment of invenfories as part of cost of sales and the
movement in the balance within the year is as follows:

2012 2011

At January 1, 3,625,019 5,149,850

Change within the year (1,254,020) {1,524,831)

At December 31, 2,370,998 3,625,019

The Company has provided a provision for impairment on the inventories when their net realizable
values are lower than their costs or when they are classified as slow moving inventories. The provision
has been accounted under cost of sales (Note 18).

(33)



(¥€)

‘(eBeBuow 1o abpsid oN 11107 ‘LE Jequweoaq) Z1I0Z L€ Jequussad Jo sk siasse sjqiiur) uo sbeblow Jo
eBpeaid ou s1 ausy | uoeoldde aajenwng ey} 0} Buipioooe wewdinbs pue ued ‘Apedoid Jepun peziuBooer usaq sey (2/9°/82' 21 1L 1LLOZ “LE lequessad]) 2217 16D L "L 10 lunowe
ue 0} jenbs S1800 jSaudly pue saouaiayip sbueyoxs ubleio; pue j$ale)ul UBQ] JSXYIEW 1 8y} 0F Aousing ubialo) Ul SUBY] JUSLSaAU) JO §1500 Buimolliog au) pasedwod Auedilion eyl

‘syuswisnipe Buiuado se sjunoooe pajeal o) pezuobaled sie 9Go'eR0‘'ea| 1. Jo uonepaidap
pPale|nWINDOE UB PUB £01°G98'0ZE L JO 1502 B ulm sjuswdinba pue Aluiyoew Ul umoys ase yoym ‘wswdinbe pue weld ‘Auadoid ‘110z ‘Le Jequazeq 10 sy {,.)
-sjoefoid oBieg snojiea pue g0IyaA [eseWILIoD 4B mau JO sjuswsaAl]
Bupasubusa 0] pejejel pue sjesse aqibuelll jo ainmeu ayt w st {(g/90°292°26 1L :L1L0Z ‘1€ Jequsoad) 902 /89021 1L ot Bununowe uoppod Buntelwss ay | spefoad
Jsues] uoneisustb meu pue juswlsaaul AIoioe) s|DiuaA felclewilied B meu ey 0] pejejal pue s1esse ajgibue] Jo ainleu ul S {ZZe L0B8'ZLL "L (LL0Z F1LE fequens()
1G1'657'692 1 4O |EI01 O} Junowe yoiym suoippe sssiffoid ur uogonisuod Jeak jusuno su) W (ppL'6EL'GS 1L 1LLOZ ‘LE Jequieded) Gke'L/S 8L 1L JO uoiuod eyl (x)

Ogv'EPE'6EL' L 86E 8|9'9ZE 12Z'189°g S.£'70Z°66 cP6280°LLZ  686'9.5°9E9 106'04Z°808  Z11'690'GL 9E5 78 L1 anjea joog 38N
(Loc'srz'zog’) - {toe'Lye's) (zzz'val'act) (lge'gsg‘sle)  (z0Ltzi'sgl)  (e60°9ss’zsz) (ssi‘ossios) - uogeiosidap pajeinwnosy
181°298°LpS'S  BGE8LO9ZE 8ZS°816'L LbO'99EeET 08Z'YPE'968  960°869'0.L8°L  BBE°ZEL'99S  £OE'GYE'STL 965'p48°' L1 3800
Z1L0Z LE Jequiadag
OBP'EPE'6EL’ L BEE8LO9ZE 122 LE9'S §1£°202'66 £YE'IB0°ALT  6B86'9.6°GE9 LO6'0LZ'90E  Z11'690'GL 9eSvi8LL @n|ea yooq Jau Aulsoj)
08¥°G58°L - 989'vZL')L 620°1E - 59.'669 - - - uohenasdap paleNwnooe Woy siesods|q
- - (sE1'c06) {(996'896°68)  (0E¥'619'%) 895°c80°S61 (oge'vio'zol) (goz'ilg'sy) - ()
uonenaidap paleNLN3de WO SI9ISUR |
(eLs'z2o'eZL) - (r99°'068} (zzl'ose'zl)  (gzs'vezial)  (802'10Z'v8) {zzvrzee’Le)  (696'008'%) - ableyo uonelosidacy
{09.'856'Y) - (zzo'aLe'y) {e2e'0) - (59.'669) - - - slesodsig
- {ege'sv. 69} - 080°610°L GLL1BL LY S86°659'9 £9L'G0L'E) o0V LbS sleysuel |
BLZ0SP 15 15L°65¥'692 1Z6's00'E LEZYP0'6T S6.°86¥'01Z  8SZ°1Z6'9Z $98°050°S 2b0°ESY'S - {.) suonppy
- - ol 86L°ZPT'6LL  655°695°6 (c01's9g'sze)  L88'P6L'941  99s‘0Lls'LZ - {.«) Wweunsnipe Buuadp
000'680'80L°L  009°206°9Z) 969'8L1'L Z68°56.L'28 £Z8'ivLize 68" P86 L85 PEL'ELZ'6ET  0LL°286'69 985928 L1 anfea ooq jau Buado
Z10Z “LE faqusnag
papua Jeaf ay} Jog
000'680'80L'L  009'Z06'9ZL 969'8.LL . Z68'G6.'2E £28'LrLZe 68" 86" /85 v6.'842'68Z7  0/L'IE6'69 OBG'FI8 L] anjea yooq JaN
(80OZ'200° 1891 - (peL'o9g't)  (sl9'6ig'ss)  (pee'zoe'oss) (2e2'260'v98)  (1pR'B06'sel) {(vlLO'zOg08) - uoeaidep paeINwNIDy
89Z'L60'68.C  009'Z06'9Z1 088'v¥8'8 505°'1.0'98 L0Z'¥60'629 1Z.'189'26v° L  SE9°Z8L'S/E  PBL'BEF'00L 9es'y8 L1 180D
L10Z ‘1§ Jaqusoag
elog mmw._mo.a u S20IUSA Salnjuing spmnow chmEn_m:_uw mm:_—u_wsm muEmEm>an_Eu puen
HolINASUOD 2 sSINXIg D SISPON » ?_m:mr_oms_ pue

juawdinba pue ued ‘Auedoird gL

(‘pejesiput asimIsylo ssaun {71,,) BT Yyspiin] U] pessaidxa spunoly)
Z10Z ‘1§ 19quada(] papua Jeak aul 10} SJUIWI)L]S [BIoURUL} 2Y] O} SaJON

"§'y IAeueg Ajowolp plos

(yspang ui panssi AjeuiBLio sluawalels [_IJUBUL JO UOIIRISURI 32USIUSAUOND)



(sg)

000'680'80L°L  DO9'Z0B'9ZL 969'821'L  Z69'CBLZE £Ze' Lyl Ze 697 796'125 VELCLEBET  DLL'AEE'EOD  9ESTIELL anjea jooq 8N
(20z'z00'L89'L) - (rba1'ee9’'l) {gie'ssz'es) (vec'zoe'oss) (2e7'/69°vo8)  (1pg'sos’ect) (pLO'ZOS'0E) - uonepaidap pajeiNwinacy
90Z'L60'68L'Z  009°Z0B'9ZL 088'¥¥2'8  50G'L.0'08 10Z'v60'629  L22'189'T6F' L GEO'ZSL'CLE  FBL'GEP'O0L  OESFLELL 150D
LL0Z ‘L€ Jequadaq
000'68G'80L'L  OD9'Z06'92) 969'8/L°L  2BB'GELZE £28°1rL'ee 68V ¥86'/8G v6L'CIZ'BEE  O/LJE6B9 0BG IRLE anjea yooq jau Buisoin
£/6'806'G1 - 66V'2E6 168'609'L 982'806 G62'066'L ) - - - uoyenaIdap PRIBNWNoge Wol sjesodsig
(z40'p52'52L) - (r16'680'L)  (980'48Z't) (zsg'oo0'L2)  (b9z'sev'as) (ovr'ezsLL)  (oLe'sse'e) - sbiey uoneedeq
(zgz'ce8'02) - (ebs'vLe'y) (2£6'858°1) (£1+'606) (Bgg'zsLel) - - - s|esodsig
- {ove'zag'oL) - 861'82 Zayr'ecs LES'YER'L 9.6'CE0'y 762'929'F - sigjsuel]
ZZL'69Z'08) 728'106'211 6Z6'209'C  £0Z'6¥E'LL BOL'ECL'LL 0E9'Y96'PE 0be'bOY £66'0LY'S - SUCRIPPY
5SZ'00¥'8C50'L  9LL'c0g've 62/'/85'8  Z9£'86EL'SE 608'582 LY 981'921'1£9 ¥ZE'IOE'OPZ  G69'ZGB'Z9  OEG'RIS'LL anjeA yooq 18U Buuad
L LOZ ‘L€ Jaquiadag papus Jeal ay) 104
6SZ00F'8S0'L  8LL'E98've 6741958 C9E'BBESE 608'58¢ L¥ 981’921 1E9D $Z8'LOE'0FZ  GAO'ZGRED  OEG RIBLL anjea jooq JaN
(601°482°145'L) - {pos'cos’Lt) (8L¥'pGo'0s)  (029'vsR'02C)  (£02'gsz'sss)  (see'zee’zzl)  (voz'evs'iz) - uofjeloardap pale|nwnooy
9Tr'.G9'629'T 811'£98've g6 LGL0L  0BL'ZS0'9L BZF'OVL'8LY  6PB'YEV'EZP'L  6LZ'PPI'BOE 668'S6L06  9ES'T/9'LL 1500
0L0Z ‘1§ Jaquiadag

|ejo | ssalboid (8] s3oIYaA, SaINYILINY SpiNowt mucmrcn__.__um wmc_n_mjm qumEm.)o.ﬁEm pues

LUCRINISUOCD % Salnyxly Q S|2poiy 2 am:m_.._om_a puen

weawdinba pue jueid ‘Auadoig 0L

{‘potesipul asIMISLIO SSBIUN {7 L., B USHIN |, 1 passaadxs sgunowy)
ZL0Z ‘LE 18quaoa( papusd ieak oyl o) SIUSIIBIR]S |BIDUBU] SY) 0) SION

&y 1Aeueg AlJOWO}0 PIo-]

(yspuny, ut poensst AjjeulBLio sJUSWAIE]S [BIJURLLY JO UOIB|SURI] 80USIUSAUOY)



{Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)
Ford Ofomotiv Sanayi A.S.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

10.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The carrying amounts of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use are as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Moulds and models 352,273,187 346,300,236
Machinery and equipment 101,236,425 104,763,970
Furniture and fixtures 53,118,988 25,062,916
Buildings 15,035,700 5,529,499
Land improvements 1,622,776 237,300
Vehicles 377,996 149,976

523,565,072 482,043,897

The allocation of depreciation expense as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Cost of production (Note 18) 113,073,259 118,215,871

General administrative expenses (Notes 19) 4,089,233 1,847,645

Research and development expenses (Note 19) 3,206,364 2,287,156

Selling and marketing expenses (Note 19) 1,841,629 1,600,302

Associated with construction in progress 862,028 1,213,098

Current year depreciation charge 123,072,513 125,254,072
11. Intangible assets

Development

December 31, 2011 Rights costs Other Total
Cost 25,276,100 432,247 432 3,357,113 460,880,645
Accumulated amortization (18,658,712) (411,668,558) (1,776,205)  (432,103,475)
Net book value 8,617,388 20,578,874 1,580,908 28,777,170
For the year ended December 31, 2012
Opening net book value 6,617,388 20,578,874 1,580,908 28,777,170
Additions 10,893,778 31,069,730 2,740,430 44,703,938
Disposals - (821,663) - (821,663)
Transfers (11,227,284) 11,227,284 - -
Depreciation charge (2,050,705)  (15,394,062)  (560,353) (18,005,120)
Dispaosals from accumulated depreciation - 821,663 - 821,663
Closing net book value 4,233,177 47,481,826 3,760,985 55,475,988
December 31, 2012
Cost 24,942 594 473,722,783 6,097,543 504,762,920
Accumulated amortization (20,709,417) (426,240,957) (2,336,558)  (449,286,932)
Net book value 4,233,177 47,481,826 3,760,985 55,475,988
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11. Intangible assets (continued)

Development

December 31, 2010 Rights costs Other Total
Cost 21,677,670 428,871,269 3,229,041 453,777,980
Accumulated amortization (17,929,947) (392,276,771) (1,271,700} (411,478,418}
Net book value 3,747,723 36,594,498 1,857,341 42,299,562
For the year ended December 31, 2011

Opening net book value 3,747,723 36,594,498 1,957,341 42,299,562
Additions 3,598,430 3,376,163 128,072 7,102,665
Amortization charge {728,765) (19,391,787) (504,505} {20,625,057)
Closing net book value 6,617,388 20,678,874 1,580,908 28,777,170
December 31, 2011

Cost 25,276,100 432,247 432 3,357,113 460,880,645
Accumulated amaortization (18,658,712} (411,668,558) (1,776,205) (432,103,475)
Net book value 5,617,388 20,578,874 1,580,908 28,777,170

The allocation of amortization charges relating to December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011
Cost of production (Note 18) 15,389,751 19,391,787
General administrative expenses (Notes 19) 1,508,053 543,004
Research and development expenses (Note 19} 1,107,316 690,266
Current year amoriization charge 18,005,120 20,625,057

12. Government incentives and grants

The Company was granted research and development contribution premiums for a total of TL 14,394,321 by
The Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey (TUBITAK) as of December 31, 2012 for Cargo
trucks and new light commercial vehicle projects. The subject amount has been netted with the development
expenses of the related project and associated with construction in progress in the balance sheet under
property, plant and equipment.

The Company received two investment incentives both greater than TL 250 million in the last quarter of
2010, under the scope of the Council of Minister’s decision numbered 2009/15199 and dated 14/07/2009.
Based on this decision, the Company can deduct 30% of the costs of fixed assets purchases related with
new investments, from the tax base, at the time investment is completed and the revenue is started to be
earned. As of December 31, 2012, fixed asset purchases amounting to TL. 531,833,087 have been realized
and tax advantages amounting to TL 158,503,824 which can be used in the forthcoming periods was gained,
after the deduction of TL 1,046,102, which was used as discounted corporate tax advantage in the current
year {(Note 24).
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13. Provision, contingent{ assets and liabilities

The Company recognizes 2 and 3 years of warranty provision for the vehicles sold by dealers for
malfunctions described in the sales agreements. Warranty expense provision is estimated by considering
vehicles under warranty as of the balance sheet date and warranty claims of vehicles sold in previous years
on a model basis.

Provisions:
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Short term warranty expense provision 41,014,572 38,849,095
l.ong term warranty expense provision 28,167,783 46,672,397

69,182,355 85,521,492

Movements in the warranty expense provision during the year are as follows:

2012 2011

At January 1, 85,521,492 68,723,154

Paid during the vear (72,167,970) (54,098,639)

Additions during the year (Note 19) 55,828,833 70,896,977

At December 31, 69,182,355 85,521,492

Letters of guarantee and letters of credit December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011

Letters of guarantee given to banks 685,574,000 194,893,049

Letters of guarantee given to customs 28,124.155 24,545,155

Letters of guarantees given to other parties 16,677,764 13,596,591

730,375,919 233,034,895

Letters of guarantee given December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Original Original

currency TL currency TL

Eurc 301.581.428 709,229,045 89,812,210 219,483,077

TL 16.501.139 16,501,139 13,527,262 13,527,262

uUsD 2.606.157 4,645,735 13,000 24,556

730,375,819 233,034,895
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13. Provision, contingent assets and liabilities {continued)

The allocation of collaterals, pledges and mortgages as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Collaterals, pledges and moritgages given by the
Company December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011

A. Total amount of collaterals/pledges/mortgages given for
its own legal entity 730,375,919 233,034,895
B. Total amount of collaterals/pledges/morigages given for
participations included in entire consclidation - -
C. Total amount of collaterals/pledges/mortgages given to
assure debts of third parties, for the purpose of
conducting the business activities - -
D. Total amount of other collaterals/pledges/mortgages
given - -
i. Total amount of collaterals/pledges/morigages given
for the parent company - -
ii. Total amount of collaterals/pledges/morigages given
for other related companies that do not fall into
B and C sections - -
fii. Total amount of collaterals/pledges/mortgages given
for third parties that do not fall into C section - -

Total 730,375,919 233,034,885

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, total amount of the collaterals, pledges and mortgages obtained by the
Company are as follows:

Leiters of guarantee faken

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Original Qriginal
currency TL currency TL
TL 138,348,665 138,348,665 260,663,503 260,663,503
Euro 12,318,405 28,969,193 2,364,519 5,778,412
uUsop 82,140 146,423 132,140 249,599
GBP - - 27,000 78,759
167,464,281 266,770,273

Tax dispute:

Fiscal Administration, imposed tax amount related to the fuel consumption for export vehicles for the years
between 2005 and 2009, amounting to TL 17,837,279 which includes Special Consumption Tax, tax penalty
and related interest. As a result of consultations with their advisors, the Company filed an appeal lawsuit at
the court. The Company won the lawsuit relating to one of them with an amounting of TL 11,982,710. The
Tax Office filed an appeal at the court and the appeal process is continuing. For the remaining amount of TL
5,854,569, the Company made the payment and the case is in the appeal stage at State Council.
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14. Commitments

Commitments related with bank loans used by the Company are as follows:

a)

b)

The company is required to ensure that its export proceeds up to an amount equal to, Euro
20,000,000 via T.C. Ziraat Bankasi A.$., and based on the credit agreements made by the Company
in 2011, Euro 60,000,000 via Vakiflar Bankas:t T.A.O. is transacted through the accounts of these
banks. The Company fulfilled these commitments as of December 31, 2012,

Based on the 1 year credit agreements made by the Company in 2012, amounting to Euro 70,000,000
with Garanti Bankasi A.$. the Company is required to ensure that its export proceeds up to an amount
equal to Euro 150,000,000 is fransacted through Garanti Bankas| accounts for the year 2012, The
Company fulfilled this commitment as of December 31, 2012.

Based on the 4 month term credit agreement made by the Company in June 2012 amounting to Euro
37,430,000 with Tirkiye Ihracat Kredi Bankasi A.S. (Eximbank), the Company is required to ensure
that its export proceeds equals to an amount of Euro 38,000,000. The Company fulfilled this
commitment as of December 31, 2012. Also, based on the 4 month term credit agreement made by
the Company in November 2012 amounting to Euro 37,430,000 with Tirkiye ihracat Kredi Bankas!
A.S. (Eximbank), the Company is required to ensure that its export proceeds equals to an amount of
Euro 38,000,000.

Operational lease commitments

Future lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease of the Company is as follows:

Operational lease commitments December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Within 1 year 3,852,436 1,952,712
Between 1 year to 5 years 7,839,168 3,417,246
11,691,604 5,369,958

15. Employee benefits

L.ong-term provisions:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Provision for employee benefifs 72,876,906 55,081,174

72,876,906 55,081,174

Provision for employee benefits:

There are no agreements for pension commitments other than the legal requirement as explained below.

Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Company is required to pay termination benefits to each employee who
has completed one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, or who is called
up for military service, dies or retires after completing 25 years of service (20 years for women) and achieves
the retirement age (58 for women and 60 for men).
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15. Employee benefits (continued)

The amount payable consists of one month’s salary limited to a maximum of TL 3,033.98 for each year of
service as of December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011 — TL 2,731.85). As of January 1, 2013, one month's
salary limit has increased to TL 3,129.25.

The liability is not funded, as there is no funding requirement.

The provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the
Company arising from the retirement of the employees.

IFRS requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the Company's obligation under
defined benefit plans, accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions were used in the calculation of the
total liability:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Discount rate {%) 3.86 4.60
Turnover rate to estimate the probability of retirement (%) 5 5

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase in line with
inflation. Thus the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the anticipated
effects of future inflation. Since the Company calculates the reserve for employee benefits every six months,
the maximum amount of TL 3,033.98 which was effective from July 1, 2012 (July 1, 2011 - TL 2,731.85) has
been used in the calculations.

Movements in the provision for employee benefits during the year are as follows:

2012 2011
Af January 1, 55,081,174 44,061,805
[nterest cost 2,128,739 2,054,263
Current year service cost 5,662,760 7,159,232
Paid during the year {5,726,188) (4,464,057)
Actuarial loss 15,730,421 6,269,931
At December 31, 72,876,906 55,081,174

16. Other asseis

Other current assets: December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
VAT to be deductible 144,221,205 114,811,622
Amounts to be billed to vendors 6,044,648 11,675,054
Prepaid expenses 4,746,495 3,093,981
Prepaid taxes and withholding 4,109,902 7,585,414
Other 15,166,776 14,805,538

174,289,026 151,871,609

VAT to be deductible Is related to the ongoing process of refund of export VAT receivable related to October,
November and December.
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16.  Other assets (continued)

Other non-current assets: December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Advances given for investmenis 324,368,840 191,659,398

324,368,840 191,659,308

Investment advances given are related to the Company’s new vehicle investments. TL 92,502,110 December
31, 2011: TL 62,748,370) is given to domestic venders as mould advances and TL 231,866,730 (December
31, 2011: TL 128,911,028) is given for the new light commercial vehicle factory investment in Kocaeli plant
and assembly line investment for the new age Transit projects procured from vendors abroad,

17. Edquity

The composition of the Company's paid-in capital as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Shareholders Shareholders

December December
31, percentage 31, Percentage
Shareholders 2012 (%) 2011 (%)
Koc Holding A.S. 134,953,357 38.46 134,053,357 38.46
Vehbi Kog Vakf 3,428,592 0.98 3,428,592 0.98
Kog¢ Holding Emekli Yardim
Sandigi Vakfi 3,259,202 0.93 3,259,202 0.93
Temel Ticaret A.S. 2,355,885 0.67 2,355,885 0.67
Total Kog Group 143,997,036 41.04 143,997,036 41.04
Ford Motor Company 143,997,036 41.04 143,997,036 41.04
Other (Publicly held) 62,915,928 17.92 62,015,928 17.92
Total 350,910,000 100.00 350,910,000 100.00
Inftation adjustment to share capital 27,920,283 27,920,283
Inflation adjusted paid in capital 378,830,283 378,830,283

Adjustment to share capital represents the restatement effect of cash and cash equivalent contributions to

share.

There are 35,091,000,000 unit of shares (December 31, 2011 - 35,091,000,000 unit) with a nominal value of

Kr 1 each.
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17.  Equity {continued)

The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code (“TCC”), The TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of statutory
profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company's paid-in capital. The
second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash distributions in excess of 5% of
the paid-in capital, Under the TCC; the legal reserves can be used only to offset losses.

In accordance with Corporate Tax Law No, 5520, dated June 13, 20086, Exemption for Sale of Participation
Shares and Property, 75% portion of corporations’ profits arising from the sale of subsidiary shares which
shares that have been carried at least for two years on the balance sheet and the profits from the sale of which
are not withdrawn within five years are followed in special reserves. The Company has reserves amounting to
TL 5,992,339 related to this exemption in its tax financial statements (December 31, 2011 - TL 20,670,400).

In accordance with CMB Financial Reporting Standards, the Company classified the above mentioned
amounts under “Restricted reserves”, the amount of restricted reserves is TL 432,432,060 as of December
31, 2012 (December 31, 2011 ~ TL 390,964,519).

In accordance with the Communiqué No:XI-29 and related announcements of CMB, effective from January 1,
2008, "Share Capital”, “Restricted Reserves” and “Share Premiums” shall be carried at their statutory amount.
The valuation differences shall be classified as follows:

- the difference arising from the “Paid-in Capital” and not been transferred fo capital yet, shall be
classified under the “Inflation Adjustment to Share Capital”;

- the difference due to the inflation adjustment of “Restricted reserves” and “Share premium” and the
amount has not been utilized in dividend distribution or capital increase yet, shall be classified under
“Retained earnings”,

Other equity items shall be carried at the amounts calculated based on CMB Financial Reporting Standards.
Adjustment to share capital has no use other than being transferred to paid-in share capital.

Based on the decision of CMB dated January 27, 2010, it is decided not to determine any minimum dividend
payment distribution requirement for publicly held companies.

In accordance with the General Assembly Meeting dated March 20, 2012, the Company decided fo pay
dividend from the net profit of the year 2011 at 100%, that is, gross TL 1 (net Kr 95.0976) per TL 1 share,
amounting to TL 350,910,000 in total which was paid in April 2012. The Company had also decided to pay
dividend at 65%, that is, gross Kr 65 (net Kr 57.2693) per Tl. 1 share, amounting to TL 228,091,500 in total at
the Exiraordinary General Assembly Meeting held on October 19, 2012 and the dividend was paid in October
2012 (2011 : TL 518,985,890).
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17.  Equity (continued)

Reserves, retained earnings and net income for the year ended December 31, 2012 according to CMB and

statutory books are as follows:

According fo

statutory books of

According to CMB account
Income for the year 641,582,558 502,155,243
Taxes receivable / (payable) 33,440,201 (89,919,272)
Net income for the year 675,022,759 412,235,971
Distributable net profit 675,022,759 412,235,971
Donations made during the year (Note 19) 13,214,246
Distributable net income including donations 688,237,005 412,235,971

In accordance with Communiqué No: XI-29, the equity schedules at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31,2011

Share capital 350,910,000 350,910,000
Inflation adjustment to share capital 27,920,283 27,920,283
Share premium 8,252 8,252
Revaluation funds 4,712,623 2,335,091
Net loss an cash flow hedge (1,298,245) {(345,806)
Restricted reserves 432,432 060 390,864,519
- L.egal reserves 426,439,719 370,204,119
- Special reserves 5,892,341 20,670,400
Retained earnings 505,957,103 464,337,418
- Inflation adjustment to equity 428,301,244 428,301,244
- Extracrdinary reserves 77,655,859 36,036,174
Net income for the year 675,022,759 662,088,726

Total equity 1,995,664,835

1,898,218,483
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17.  Equity {continued)

The readjusted amounts and equity inflation adjustment differences of the historical values shown above for
the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Equity inflation

Adjusted adjustment

December 31, 2012; Historical values values differences
Share capital 350,910,000 378,830,283 27,920,283
Legal reserves 426,439,719 485,192,323 58,752,604
Extraordinary reserves 77,655,859 446,800,875 369,145,016
Share premium 8,252 361,733 353,481
Special reserves 5,992,341 6,042,484 50,143
861,006,171 1,317,227,698 456,221,527

Equity [nflation

Adjusted adjustment

December 31, 2011: Historical values values differences
Share capital 350,910,000 378,830,283 27,920,283
Legal reserves 370,294,118 429,046,723 58,752,604
Extraordinary reserves 36,036,174 405,181,190 369,145,016
Share premium 8,252 361,733 353,481
Special reserves 20,670,400 20,720,543 50,143
777,918,945 1,234,140,472 456,221,527

Inflation adjustment difference in equity can be utilized in issuing bonus shares and in offsetting accumulated
losses; the carrying amount of extraordinary reserves can be utilized in issuing bonus shares, cash dividend

distribution and offsetiing accumulated losses.

Otokar shares which are publicly traded in ISE are valued at their closing price as of December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011. Fair value change (positive} amounting to TL 2,377,532 (December 31, 2011 — TL
427,422} is shown in statement of comprehensive income.

The effects of the changes in revaluation fund in the statement of comprehensive income are as follows:

2012 2011
At January 1, 1,989,285 1.907.669
Fair value increase of financial assets 2,377,532 427,422
Fair value (decrease) of financial derivatives (952,4389) (345,806)
At December 31, 3,414,378 1,989,285
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18. Sales and cost of sales

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Export sales

5,936,332,099

5,853,930,197

Domestic sales 4,366,124,292 5,088,764,313
Other sales 83,258,381 108,924,394
Less: Discounts (617,777,515) (606,595,954)

9,767,937,257 10,445,022,950

Units of vehicle sales:

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Domestic Export Total  Domestic Export Total

sales sales sales sales sales sales

Transit 28,179 113,502 141,681 35,246 147,766 183,012
Transit Connect 29.162 75,081 104,243 37,445 64,616 102,061
Passenger vehicles 45,919 613 46,532 57,946 384 58,330
Transit Custom 1,113 14,328 15,441 - - -
Cargo 5,811 955 6,766 8,329 824 9,153
Ranger 827 10 837 1,714 4 1,718
Fiesta Van - - - - 55 55
111,011 204,489 315,500 140,680 213,649 354,329

Summaries of cost of production as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows;

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Raw material cost (6,546,593,774) (6,692,484,964)
Production overhead costs (637,331,701) (644,304,470)
Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 10 and 11) (128,463,010) (137,607,658)
Change in finished goods inventory 144,649,161 60,177,833
Total cost of goods sold (7,167,739,324) (7,414,219,259)

Cost of trade goods sold

{1,525,622,522)

(1,829,292,521)

Total cost of sales

(8,693,361,546)

(9,243,511,780)
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19. Research and development expenses, marketing and sales expenses, general administrative

expenses

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Selling and marketing expenses:

Warranty expenses (Note 13)

Vehicle transportation expenses

Advertising expenses

Personnel expenses

Spare parts transportation and packaging expenses
Dealer and service development expenses
Depreciation expense (Note 10)

Other

(55,828,833)
(47,900,238)
(47,424,649)
(37,188,390)
(16,944,752)

(9,565,370)

(1,841,629)
(14,403,348)

(70,896,977)
(52,994,210)
(52,721,289)
(32,129,825)
(14,988,279)

(9,210,817)

(1,690,302)
(20,538,286)

(231,097,209)

(255,169,985)

General administrative expenses:

Personnel expenses {51,081,421) (52,132,874)
New project administrative expenses {13,934,069) (7,361,693)
Grants and donations (Note 17) {13,214,246) (18,315,200)
Legal, consulting and auditing expenses {12,206,087) (11,932,460)
Depreciation and amortization expense (Notes 10 and 11) (5,597,286) (2,390,649)
Repair, maintenance and energy expenses (4,014,969) (3,522,562)
Travel expenses (3,385,758) (3,729,247)
Duties, taxes and levies (2,785,861) {1,720,001)
Warranty expenses excluding sales (1,892,354) {1,397,671)
Other {12,470,061) (10,402,108)
(120,582,112) {112,904 ,465)
Research and development expenses:
Personnel expenses {60,033,883) (64,819,409)
Project costs (35,774,742) (28,707,474)
Research and development administrative expenses (7,008,757) (7,985,354)
Depreciation and amortization expense {Notes 10 and 11) (4,313,680) (2,977,422)
Other (4,955,892) (2,396,451)
{112,084,954) (106,886,110)
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20. Expenses by nature

The classification of expenses by nature for the years ended at December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Raw material cost {6,546,593,774) (6,692,484,964)
Cost of trade goods sold {1,525,622,522) (1,829,292,521)
Personnel expenses (488,691,859) {501,075,874)
Other operational expenses (303,707,986) {300,840,441)
Other overhead expenses (297,065,505) {310,222,1686)
Financial expenses (224,610,244) {215,432,140)
Depreciation and amortization expenses (140,215,605) {144,666,031)
Change in finished goods inventory 144,649,161 60,177,833
Other expenses (3,551,780) (51,835,170)

Totfal expenses {9,385,410,114) (9,985,671,474)

21.  Other operating income/expenses

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Other operating income and gains:

Price difference and claim recovery 13,203,775 11,166,945
Commission income 7,076,706 9,975,091
Adjustments on prior period corporate tax 5,740,521 7,104,167
License fees income 4,413,044 4,705,352
Rent income 3,563,296 3,088,123
Income from the sale of property, plant and equipment 2,789,119 2,801,720
Insurance claim recoveries 1,170,077 465,457
Dividend income 281,198 87.874
Other 9,165,570 9,756,960

47,403,306 49,151,689

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Other operating expenses and losses!

Provision for doubtful receivables (1,200,000) (88,919)
Prior period costs (1,138,567) (3,792,064)
Claim charges for import materials {795,536) (1,870,025)
Loss from the sale of property, plant and equipment (539,646) (3,284,682)
Competition Board Penalty - {36,633,529)
Cther - {781,242)

(3,673,749) {46,450,461)
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22. Financial income

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Fareign exchange gains 141,942,140 191,298,369
Finance income from credit sales 46,729,122 46,885,812
Interest income 22,980,847 48,068,840

211,652,109 286,253,021

23. Financial expenses

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Foreign exchange losses (156,915,443) (149,865,185)
Finance charges on credit purchases (51,327,108) (42,060,676)
Inferest expenses (12,607,844) (18,799,809)
Other financial expenses {3,759,849) (4,708,470)

(224,610,244) {215,432,140)

24. Tax assets and liabilities

Corporate Tax Law was amended by the Law No, 5520 dated June 13, 2006. Law No, 5520 came into force as
of 21 June 2006, but many of the provisions came into force effective from January 1, 2006. Accordingly, the
corporate tax rate for the fiscal year 2012 is 20% (December 31, 2011 - 20%). Corporate tax is payable at a
rate of 20% on the total income of the Company after adjusting for certain disallowable expenses, corporate
income tax exemptions (participation exemption, investment allowance, etc) and corporate income tax
deductions (like research and development expenditures deduction). No further tax is payable unless the profit
is distributed.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, which have a place of business in Turkey, or resident
corporations are not subject to withholding tax, otherwise, dividends paid are subject to withholding tax at the
rate of 15%, an increase in capital via issuing bonus shares is not considered as a profit distribution and thus
does not incur withholding tax.

Corporations are required to pay advance corporate tax quarterly at the rate of 20% on their corporate
income. Advance tax is payable by the 17th of the second month following each calendar quarter end.
Advance tax paid by corporations is credited against the annual corporation tax liability. The balance of the
advance tax paid may be refunded or used to set off other liabilities to the government.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on {ax assessments. Companies file
their tax declarations to the Tax Office within the 25th of the fourth month following the close of the financial
year.

Tax returns are open for five years from the beginning of the year that follows the date of filing during which
time the tax authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and the related accounting records on which they
are based, and may issue re-assessments based on their findings.

Under the Turkish taxation system, tax losses can be carried forward to offset against future taxable income
for up to five years. Tax losses cannot be carried back to offset profits from previous periods.
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24, Tax assets and liabilities (continued)

There are many exemptions in Corporate Tax Law regarding corporations. Those related to the Company
are explained below:

Dividend gains from shares in capital of another corparation subject to resident taxpaying (except dividends
from investment funds participation certificates and investment trusts shares) are exempt from corporate tax.

The Company capitalizes the R&D expenses made within the scope of the Code no 5746 in its legal books.
According to the provisions of the same Code, the Company makes calculation within the framework of the
related legislation over the R&D expenses incurred, and utilizes R&D deduction exemption at the rate of
100% for the portion of expenses allowed by the Code. As of December 31, 2012 the Company used R&D
deduction of TL. 55,811,632 (2011: TL 48,013,361} in return for the legal tax.

The decree on Government Subsidies for Incentives regulating investment incentives was published in the
official gazefte and became effective on 16 July 2009. Within the scope of this decree, the Company
acquired a large-scaled investment incentive certificate on 13 December 2010 amounting fto TL
1,342,219,988 for the modernization of its Transit model and a large-scaled investment incentive certificate
on December 31, 2010 amounting to TL 367,892,491 for the new model investment in the light commercial
vehicle segment. Subject investment is located in the 1. Region and has a 30% rate of contribution to
investment. As of the balance sheet date, in the framework of the related investment incentive certificates, an
investment expense of TL 531,833,087 was made. The Company used a discount on corporate tax for its
Transit Custom model for TL 1,046,102 and this amount has been deducted from the total deferred tax
asset.

The Company's net tax liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Current year corporate {ax 89,919,272 168,782,079
Prepaid tax and withholding (82,177,641) (111,818,350)
7,741,631 56,963,729

The taxation on income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Current year corporate tax (89,919,272) (168,782,079)
Deferred tax 123,359,473 30,798,086
33,440,201 (137,983,993)
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24. Tax assets and liabilities {continued)

Calculation of the tax expense reconciliation using the current year tax expense in the statement of income
as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and current tax ratio based on income before tax is as follows;

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Income before tax: 641,582,558 800,072,719

Current year fax expense {128,316,512) (160,014,544)

R&D deduction 11,162,326 9,602,672
Free zone profit exemption 951,229 1,026,053
Investment incentive exemption 147,464,410 11,919,443
Other temporary differences 2,178,748 (517,617)

33,440,201 {137,983,983)

The Company calculates deferred tax assets and liabilities from the temporary differences identified during
the evaluation of the differences between the balance sheet prepared under IFRS and financial statements
prepared for tax purposes.

The breakdown of cumulative temporary differences and the resulting deferred tax assets and liabilities as at
December 31, 2012 and 2011 using the current enacted tax rates is as follows:

Cumulative temporary

Deferred tax

differences assets/(liabilities)
December 31 December 31  December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Investment incentive tax asset 531,833,087 122,767,903 158,503,824 12,085,516
Employee benefit provision 72,876,908 55,081,174 14,575,381 11,016,235
Warranty expense provision 69,182,355 85,521,492 13,836,471 17,104,299
Expense accruals 66,429,815 50,209,442 13,285,962 10,041,888
Inventories 10,269,456 3,746,431 2,053,891 749,286
Unearned credit finance income/(expense) - net 393,748 195,474 78,749 (39,095)
Difference between financial statements adjusted
under IFRS and tax-based financial statements:
- Tangible and intangible assets 83,139,964 94,512,342 16,627,993 18,802,468
218,962,271 69,860,597
Deferred tax liabilities:
Difference between financial statements adjusted
under IFRS and tax-based financial statements:
- Tangible and intangible assets 656,780,718 522,615,725 (131,356,144} (104,523, 145)
- Income accruals 22,191,210 28,210,078 (4,438,242) (5,642,017)
{135,794,386)  (110,165,162)
Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) 83,167,885 (40,304,565)
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24. Tax assets and liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax movements are as follows:

Charged to
Charged to comprehensive
income income
January 1, statement as statement as December 31,
2012 profit/(loss) profit/(loss) 2012
Deferred tax liabilities:
Temporary difference between financial
statements adjusted under IFRS and tax:
Tangible and intangible assets (85,620,677) (29,107,474) - (114,728,151}
Income accruals (5,619,521) 1,328,908 - (4,290,613}
Fair value increase in financial assets (22,496) - (125,133) (147,629}
Deferred tax assets:
Investment incentive tax asset 12,085,516 146,418,308 - 158,503,824
Provision for employee benefits 11,016,235 3,559,146 - 14,575,381
Warranty expense provision 17,104,299 (3,267,828) - 13,836,471
Expense accruals 9,955,437 3,005,864 - 12,961,401
Inventories 749,286 1,304,605 - 2,053,891
Fair value decrease in financial derivatives 86,451 - 238,110 324,561
tUneamed credit finance loss - net (39,095) 117,844 - 78,749
Deferred tax asset - net (40,304,585) 123,359,473 112,977 83,167,885
Charged to
comprehensive
Charged to income
income statement statement as December 31,
January 1, 2011 as profit{loss) profit{loss) 2011
Deferred tax liabilities:
Temporary difference between financial
statements adjusted under IFRS and
tax:
Tangible and intangible assets {104,256,782) 18,636,105 - (85,620,677)
Income accruals (1,644,430) (3,975,091) - (5,619,521)
Unearned credit finance income - net (19,958) {19,137} - (39,095)
Fair value increase in financial assets - - (22,496) (22,496)
Deferred tax assets
Warranty expense provision 13,744,631 3,359,668 - 17,104,299
investment incentive tax asset 4,526,146 7,559,370 - 12,085,516
Provision for employee benefits 8,812,361 2,203,874 - 11,016,235
Expense accruals 7,699,844 2,255,593 - 8,955,437
inventories (28,418) 777,704 - 749,286
Fair value decrease in financial
derivatives - - 86,451 86,451
Deferred tax liability - net (71,166,6086) 30,798,086 63,955 (40,304,565)
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25, Earnings per share

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Net income for the year (TL)

Weighted average number of shares with nominal

value of Kr 1 each

675,022,759

35,091,000,000

662,088,726

35,091,000,000

Earnings per share with nominal value of Kr 1 each

1.92 Kr

1.89 Kr

26. Transactions and balances with related parties

Related party can be defined according to whether one of the companies has control over the others or has
significant effect on its financial and administrative decisions. The Company, is controlled by Kog Holding
A.S. and Ford Motor Company. In the financial statements, shareholder companies, shareholders and

financial fixed assets and other group companies’ assets are shown as related parties.

The related party balances at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and the transactions with related

parties during the year are as follows:
a) Receivables from related parties:

i) Trade receivable from refated pariies

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Due from shareholders:

Ford Motor Company and its subsidiaries 547,996,541 691,134,250
547,996,541 691,134,250

Due from group companies(*):

Otokog Otomotiv Ticaret ve Sanayi A.S. 201,024,921 186,190,661

Other 4,514,189 1,912,344
205,539,110 188,103,005

Less: Unearned credit finance income (1,057,096} (1,863,052)
752,478,555 877,374,203

(*)  The Company’s shareholders’ subsidiaries and affiliates.

Export sales mainly consist of sales to Ford Motor Company. Payments terms and conditions are specified in
the business agreements with Ford Motor Company. Receivables from the Ford Motor Company are due in

14 days and receivables are collected regularly.
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26. Transactions and balances with related parties (continued)

Per the domestic dealership agreement between Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S. and Otokog Otomotiv Ticaret ve
Sanayi A.S., the Companies have a vehicle and spare parts frade connection. As mentioned in Note 7, the
Company's receivables from Otokog¢ Otomotiv Ticaret ve Sanayi A.$ is due in 30 days on average,

b) Payables to related parties:

i) Trade payables to related parties

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Due to Shareholders:

Ford Motor Company and its subsidiaries 233,627,483 275,655,280
233,527,483 275,655,280
Due to group companies{*):
Zer Merkezi Hizmetler ve Ticaret A.3. 28,779,476 28,611,410
Ram Dig Ticaret A.S. 16,622,916 17,378,510
Kog Sistem Bilgi ve lletisim Hizmetleri A.S. 4,542,232 2,934,044
Opet Fuchs Madeni Yag Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 2,463,770 327,641
Setur Servis Turistik A.S. 1,908,907 2,854,488
Otokog Otomotiv Ticaret ve Sanayi A.S. 1,549,714 853,906
Kogtag Yapi Marketleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 1,389,750 1,795,311
AKPA Dayanikl Tlketim LPG ve Akaryakit Urlinleri
Pazarlama A.S. 861,421 1,248,429
Ram Sigorta Aracilik Hizmetleri A.S. 572,244 423,819
Callus Bilgi ve iletigim Hizmetleri A.S. 288,487 46,937
Tan Pazarlama ve lletisim Hizmetleri A.S. 131,375 254,801
Kog Universitesi 114,217 51,095
Palmira Turizm Ticaret A.$. 84,255 86,860
Opet Petrolclilik A.S. 71,778 3,175,831
FPromena Elektronik A.S. 44,722 161,542
V.K.V. Amerikan Hastanesi Saghk Hiz.Tic.A.S. 24,765 11,951
Otokar Otomotiv ve Savunma Sanayi A.3. 24,225 197,904
Tofag Tlrk Otomobil Fabrikas: A.S. 5,496 9,680
Aygaz A.3. - 16,596
Setair Hava Tasimacihigi A.S. - 13,477
Arcelik A.S - 883
Ozel Med Amerikan Poliklinigi - 5,200
Ark Ingaat - 2,571,511
Aygaz Dogalgaz Toptan Satis A.S. - 2,513,107
59,479,750 65,544,933
Less: Unearned credit finance expense {228,564) (414,951)
292,778,669 340,785,262

(*)  The Company's shareholders’ subsidiaries and affiliates.
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26. Transactions and balances with related parties (continued)
ii) Other payables to related parties

December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011
Yapi ve Kredi Bankast A.S. 1,221,174 13,346,087
Kog Holding A.S. 168,707 2,408,926
Other 59,189 713,183

1,449,061 16,468,196

c) Sales to related parties:

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Ford Motor Company (%) 5,846,254,699 5,641,091,144
Otokog Otomotiv Ticaret ve Sanayi A.S.(*) 1,223,507,084 1,238,782,018
Zer Merkezi Hizmetler ve Ticaret A.S.(**%) 48,692,300 57,181,225
Other 9,741,687 16,308,098

7,128,195,770 6,053,362,485

Less: Financial income from credit sales

(13,720,173)

(16,978,165)

7,114,475,597

6,936,384,320

**)
)

The Company, exports vehicle, spare parts and service to Ford Motor Company.

The Company has a vehicle and spare parts trade in accordance with domestic dealer agreement with

Otokog Otomotiv Ticaret ve Sanayi A.S.

Sales to Zer Merkezi Hizmetler ve Ticaret A.S. mainly consists of scrap sales.
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26. Transactions and balances with related parties (continued)

d) Material, service and fixed asset purchases from related parties:

January 1 — Becember 31, 2012

Material Service Fixed assets Total
Domestic purchases:

Zer Merkezi Hizmetler ve Ticaret A.S. 14,732,196 135,159,753 60,763 149,952,712
Ark ingaat - - 74,299,597 74,299,597
Ram Dig Ticaret A.S. 60,280,743 - - 60,280,743

AKPA Dayanikll Thketim LPG ve
Akaryakit Uriinleri Pazarlama AS. 14,780,943 - -~ 14,780,943
Kog Sistemn Bilgi ve lletisim Hizmetleri A.S. - 7,113,946 6,430,220 13,544,166
Opet Fuchs Madeni Yag Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 12,362,700 - - 12,362,700
Setur Servis Turistik A.3. - 11,514,929 - 11,514,929
Kog Holding A.S. - 8,872,406 - 8,872,406
Koctas Yapt Marketleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 7,410,963 - 455,506 7,866,474
Ram Sigorta Aracilik Hizmetleri A.$. - 7,422,987 - 7,422,987
Argelik A.S. 5,630 7,024,497 - 7,030,127
Otokog Otomotiv Ticaret ve Sanayi A.S. - 4,992,109 1,321,196 6,313,305
Opet Petrolciilik A.S. 4,008,894 - - 4,008,594
Callus Bilgi ve lletisim Hizmetleri A.S. - 1,381,439 - 1,381,439
Tani Pazarlama ve lletisim Hizmetleri A.S. - 1,270,173 - 1,270,173
Palmira Turizm Ticaret A.$. - 602,448 - 602,448
Promena Elektronik Ticaret A.S. - 531,800 - 531,800
Otokar Otomotiv ve Savunma Sanayi A.S. - 514,092 - 514,092
Setair Hava Tasimacili§i ve Hizmetleri A.S. - 293,888 - 293,888
Kog Universitesi - 170,468 - 170,468
V.K.V. Amerikan Hastanesi Saghk Hiz.Tic. A.S. - 145,295 - 145,295
Aygaz A.S. 128,877 - - 128,877
Ozel Med Amerikan Poliklinigi - 8,969 - 8,969
Tofag Tiirk Otomobil Fabrikasi A.S. - 7,637 - 7,637
Bilkom Bilisim Hizmetleri A.S. - 1,437 - 1,437
113,710,951 187,028,273 82,567,282 383,306,506
Less: Financial expense from credit sales (1,785,5653) - - (1,785,553)
111,925,388 187,028,273 82,567,282 381,520,953
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26. Transactions and balances with related parties (continued)

January 1 — December 31, 2011

Material Service  Fixed assets Total
Domestic purchases:
Zer Merkezi Hizmetler ve Ticaret A.S. 10,906,606 120,526,098 82,617 131,515,321
Ram Dig Ticaret A.$. 56,317,549 - - 56,317,549
Opet Petrolciiliik A.S. 17,618,341 - - 17,618,341
Eltek Elektrik Enerjisi Ith. Ihr. Ve Toptan A.S. 19,544,561 - - 19,544,561
Ark Insaat 17,620,604 - - 17,620,604
Aygaz Dogalgaz Toptan Satis A.S, 15,719,823 - - 15,719,823
AKPA Dayanikh Tiketim LPG ve
Akaryakit Urlinleri Pazarlama A.S. 14,915,009 - - 14,915,009
Setur Servis Turistik A.3. - 12,794,384 - 12,794,384
Kog Sistem Bilgi ve iletisim
Hizmetleri A.S. - 3,341,978 5,804,738 9,246,716
Kogtas Yap! Marketleri
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 8,464,226 - 94,816 8,559,042
Ram Sigorta Aracilik Hizmetleri A.S. - 7,778,927 - 7,778,927
Kog Holding A.S. - 7,727,302 - 7,727,302
Otokog Otomotiv Ticaret ve Sanayi A.S. - 2,091,864 1,782,821 3,874,685
Otokar Otomotiv ve Savunma Sanayi A.S. - 1,798,121 85,000 1,883,121
Kog.net Haberlesme Teknoloji ve
iletisim Hizmetleri A.S.(%) - 1,418,583 267,374 1,685,957
Opet Fuchs Madeni Yag
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 1,603,990 - - 1,603,990
Tant Pazarlama ve iletigim Hizmetleri A.S. - 1,649,171 - 1,549,171
Callus Bilgi ve iletisim Hzimetleri A.S. - 711,464 - 711,464
Setair Hava Tagimacilifi ve Hizmetleri A.S. - 648,099 - 648,099
Palmira Turizm Ticaret A.S. - 547,331 23,778 571,109
Promena Elektronik Ticaret A.3. - 376,800 - 376,800
Ko¢ Universitesi - 240,613 - 240,613
Aygaz A.G. 132,169 - - 132,169
V.K.V. Amerikan Hastanesi Saglik Hiz.Tic.A.S. - 113,388 - 113,388
Tofag Tirk Ofomobil Fabrikas! A.S. - 22,008 - 22,006
Arcelik A.S. 16,280 - - 16,280
Ozel Med Amerikan Poliklinigi - 6,610 - 6,610
Bilkom Bilisim Hizmetleri A.S. - 3,368 - 3,368
Tirk Trakttr A.S. 195 - - 195
162,859,353 161,696,107 8,241,144 332,796,604
l.ess: Financial expense from credit sales {4,405,654) - - {4,405,654)

158,453,699 161,696,107 8,241,144 328,390,850

M Kog Holding has transferred Kog.Net Haberlesme Teknoloji ve lletigim Hizmetleri A.$ shares as of November 30,
2011.
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26. Transactions and balances with related parties (continued)

Material, vehicle and service purchases from abroad:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Ford Motor Company 3,959,541,682 4,346,121,545

e} License fees paid to Ford Motor Company included in cost of sales:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

63,348,604 73,047,471

f} License fees received from Ford Motor Company included in other income:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

4,413,044 4,705,352

a) Donations to Ko¢ Group foundations, included in general administrative expenses:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

12,691,187 16,867,815

h) The details of deposits in related banks and loans obtained from related banks:

Deposits in related banks: December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S.

- Foreign currency time deposits 81,026,491 133,962,936
- TL demand deposits 14,774,853 10,231,042
- T1. time deposits 4,600,958 55,287,918
- Foreign currency demand deposits 63,678 667,664

100,465,980 200,149,560
l.oans obtained from related banks December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. 8,231,871 -

The Company obtained the loans from the consortium of Kog Holding and 14 financial institutions and as sub
borrower, utilized TL 28,521,600 eguivalent of USD 16 million of the loan obtained by Kog Holding {(Note 6).
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26. Transactions and balances with related pariies {continued)

1) Commission income:

BPecember 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. 7,967,386 9,721,269

i) Commission expense:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Yap! ve Kredi Bankast A.S. 50,742,453 72,685,342
Kog Tiketici Finansmanm A.S. 2,829,930 2,267,067
53,572,383 74,952,409

Commissions paid to Kog Tiketici Finansmar A.§. and Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.$ is recorded as sales
discounts.

i Interest income:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Yapi ve Kredi Bankas: A.S. 6,153,305 9,507,070

k) Dividend income:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Otokar Otomotiv ve Savunma Sanayi A.S. 281,198 87,874
1} Compensation of key management personnel:

The Company defines its key management personnel as board of directors’ members, general managers,
assistant general managers and directors reporting directly to the general manager.

Compensation of key management personnel includes salaries, premiums, Social Security Institution
employer’s contribution, employer’s contribution of unemployment insurance and the attendance fees.

The total amount of compensation given to key management personnel of the Company in 2012 was
TL 15,126,090 (December 31, 2011 — TL 14,189,305).
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{Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.

Nofes fo the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.}

27.  Financial instruments and financial risk management {continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily against to Euro and partly against to USD. The
foreign exchange risk of the Company arises from long-term Euro investment loans.

December 31, 2012

Profit/(Loss)
Appreciation in foreign currency / Depreciation in foreign currency
Change in USD against TL by 10%
US Dollar net {liabilities) / assets {3,533,345) 3,533,345
US Dollar net hedged amount - -
US Dollar net (loss) f gain {3,533,345) 3,533,345
Change in Euro against TL by 10%
Euro net (liabilities) / assets (69,732,530) 69,732,530
Euro net hedged amount - -
Euro net {loss) / gain (69,732,530} 69,732,530
Change in other foreign currency against TL by 10%
Other foreign currency denominated net assets/(liabilities) 293,987 (293,987)
Other foreign currency denominated- hedged amount - -
Other foreign currency denominated net gain/{loss) 293,987 (293,987)
December 31, 2011
Profit/(Loss)
Appreciation in foreign currency / Depreciation in foreign currency
Change in USD against TL by 10%
US Dollar net (liabilities) / assets (3,151,698) 3,151,698
US Dollar net hedged amount - -
US Dollar net (loss} / gain (3,151,698) 3,151,698
Change in Euro against TL by 10%
Euro net asset/(liabilities) 10,086,666  (10,086,666)
Euro net hedged amount - -
Euro net gain/{loss) 10,086,666 (10,086,666)
Change in other foreign currency against TL by 10%
Other foreign currency denominated net asset/(liabilities) 598,086 (598,086)
Other foreign currency denominated- hedged amount - -
Other foreign currency denominated net gain/(loss) 598,086 (598,086)
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{Convenience franslation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)
Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.

Notes to the financial statemenis for the year ended December 31, 2012
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

27. Financial instruments and financial risk management {continued)

The comparative amounts for total export and import amounts for the year ended December 31, 2012 and
2011 are as follows;

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Total export amount 5,936,332,099 5,853,930,197
Total import amount 5,079,439,096 5,428,691,358

The Company's net assets are exposed to foreign exchange risk which arises from export sales. To minimize
its foreign currency risk the Company follows a balanced foreign currency position policy. The foreign currency
exposure arising from foreign currency denominated borrowings and trade payables is managed through
assets denominated in foreign currency.

Interest rate risk

The Company's interest rate sensitive financial instruments are as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Fixed interest rate financial instruments
Financial assets 273,952,715 738,079,840
Financial liabilities 511,098,797 73,314,000
Floating interest rate financial instruments
Financial liabilities(™) 736,549,267 798,812,178
(*)  As of December 31, 2012, the Company, signed an interest swap agreement in order to mitigate the
cash flow interest risk related to the floating interest loan amounting to Euro 40,000,000 (TL
94,068,000) with a maturity of December 9, 2015.
If the interest rates of variable interest-bearing USD and Euro dencminated borrowings were 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower/higher

by TL 615,024 at December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2041 —~ TL 1,039,330), due to higher/lower interest
expense.
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(Convenience fransiation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Ford Ofomotiv Sanayi A.S.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

27. Financial instruments and financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy table

The Company classifies the fair value measurement of financial instruments reported at fair value
according to their source of valuation inputs, using the three-level hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1: Market price valuation techniques for the determined financial instruments traded in markets
(unadjusted)

Level 2: Other valuation technigues that includes direct or indirect observable inputs
Level 3: Valuation techniques that does not contain observable market inputs

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company's hierarchy table for its assets and liabilities
recorded at fair value are as follows:

December 31, 2012
Levelt (*) Level 2 (**) Level 3

Assets at fair value

Financial investments
Otokar shares 5,961,405 - -

Total asseis 5,961,405 - -

Liabhilities at fair value

Cash flow hedge swap transaction - 1,683,905 -

Total Liabilities - 1,683,905 -

" Fair value is calculated at market prices per the Stock Exchange market at reporting date.

(**) Fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

December 31, 2011
Levelt (*) Level 2 (**) Level 3

Assets at fair value

Financial investments
Otokar shares 3,458,740 - -

Total assets 3,458,740 - -

Liabilities at fair value

Cash flow hedge swap transaction - 424,850 -

Total Liabilities - 424,850 -

(*)  Fair value is calculated at market prices per the Stock Exchange market at reporting date.

(*) Fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from
prices).
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{Convenience franslation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)
Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A.S.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

28. Derivative financial instruments

December 31,2012 December 31, 2011

Derivative financial instruments:

Long term financial derivatives 1,683,905 424,850

1,683,905 424,850

The Company has obtained a long term loan in foreign currency with a floating rate from the
international market and entered into a long-term swap transaction to fix the interest rate and hedge
against interest rate risk.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company has entered into swap transaction for Euro 40,000,000
(equivalent of TL 92,340,000) with a maturity of December 9, 2015 to hedge itself from the risk caused
by fluctuations in interest rates The critical terms of the swap contract such as due date, repayment,
and changes in interests are in line with the foreign currency loan agreement subject to the swap
transaction as of December 31, 2012. The fair value of the related swap transaction as of December
31, 2012 is amounting to TL 1,683,805 and presented in “Non~-current liabilities”.

29. Subsequent events

There is no significant subsequent event to be disclosed.

30. Disclosure of other matters

There are no other matters other than stated above, which would materially affect or that would have
material effect on the financial statements, required for the purpose of understanding and interpreting the
financial statements or on their interpretation and understandability.



